City of Ironwood 213 S. Marquette St. Ironwood, MI 49938



Phone: (906) 932-5050 Fax: (906) 932-5745 www.cityofironwood.org

# Important Information About Your Drinking Water USE BOTTLED WATER FOR INFANTS

The City of Ironwood is working cooperatively with the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services, Western Upper Peninsula Health Department, and the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy to investigate potential manganese levels in homes.

The City of Ironwood currently meets all health advisory limits for manganese. The current manganese levels that have been independently tested show that the level of manganese in the city wells tested between 1.2 and 520 parts per billion (ppb). The well that tested at 520 ppb was subsequently taken out of service. The level of manganese leaving the City's water plant, which is when water from the different wells gets mixed together, was 280 ppb. The EPA Health Advisory Level for children less than 12 months old is 300 ppb and for adults is 1,000 ppb.

As the manganese levels in the drinking water approach the US Environmental Protection Agency precautionary levels, this Precautionary Notice is being distributed for City of Ironwood and City of Hurley, Wisconsin residents until additional testing can be completed. The Western Upper Peninsula Health Department will be conducting additional system wide testing to further evaluate manganese levels in the system.

The City of Ironwood and the City of Hurley are taking a precautionary approach to address this issue. The City of Ironwood will be providing bottled water for families with infants 12 months and under until further notice. You may pick up bottled water at the Ironwood Public Safety Office located at 123 West McLeod Avenue. The pick-up hours will be Monday through Friday from 9 am – 3 pm and Saturday and Sunday from 10 am – 2 pm.

## What should I do?

## Use bottled water only for children less than 12 months old (infants).

Some amount of manganese is needed for the human body to function, but too much can be harmful. The bodies of adults and children older than 12 months can remove excess manganese. Infants' bodies may not be able to process higher levels. Making formula or foods with water containing high levels of manganese can increase an infant's risk of health problems. Too much manganese is linked to learning and behavior problems.

**Do not boil the water**. Boiling water does not remove manganese and may increase the amount.

If you have medical questions, please contact your doctor.





## What does this mean?

- Infants less than 12 months old should be given bottled water for anything they eat or drink, including making juice, formula, purees and cereals.
- Adults and children over 12 months old can use tap water for drinking.
- Adults and children of any age (including infants) can continue to bathe and shower, brush their teeth, and wash clothes, foods, and dishes in tap water.

### What is being done?

As of August 8, 2019, the well with the highest levels of manganese has been turned off to lower the total amount of manganese that leaves the water plant. We are working with the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services, Western Upper Peninsula Health Department (WUPHD), and the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy to investigate the amount of manganese in homes. The WUPHD will be collecting the samples. This sampling is expected to begin Friday August 9, 2019. We will give you more information as soon as we have the results from this investigation.

- A regularly scheduled City Commission meeting will take place on August 12, 2019 at 5:30 pm at the Ironwood Memorial Building (213 S. Marquette St.). The following agencies will be present to provide information and updates on the manganese investigation:
  - Michigan Department of Health and Human Services
  - Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy
  - Western Upper Peninsula Health Department

For more information about manganese and your heath, please contact WUPHD at 906-482-7382 or Michigan Department of Health and Human Services at 800-648-6942. These lines are available Monday through Friday from 8 am - 4 pm. City of Hurley residents can contact the Iron County Health Department Monday through Friday at 715-561-2191 from 8 am - 4 pm. City of Ironwood residents can contact the City of Ironwood Water Department at 906-932-5050 x110 from 7:30 am-4:00 pm.

Please share this information with all the other people who drink this water, especially those who may not have received this notice directly (for example, people in apartments, nursing homes, schools, and businesses). You can do this by posting this notice in a public place or distributing copies by hand or mail.

This notice is being sent to you by the City of Ironwood.